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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: The Civil Service

          3  and Labor Committee of the City Council is now in

          4  session. I will start by introducing myself. I am

          5  Councilwoman Lucy Cruz, Chair of the Civil Service

          6  and Labor Committee. To my immediate left is Council

          7  Member Larry Warden from the Bronx. There will be

          8  other members, such as Karen Koslowitz who is a

          9  member of the Consumer Affairs, and she is chairing

         10  her meeting at this time but she is here.

         11                 To my immediate right is Carl Smith,

         12  Counsel to the Committee, and Frank Neeley, Policy

         13  Analyst.

         14                 I would like to start the hearing as

         15  soon as possible in the absence really of time and

         16  certainly cool conditions.

         17                 Again, good afternoon. Today the

         18  Committee on Civil Service and Labor will hold and

         19  receive testimony in relation to the Citywide

         20  Occupational Safety and Health Program, COSH.

         21  Invited to testify are Sylvia Pryce, Director of

         22  Citywide Occupational Safety and Health Program and

         23  high level members of her staff.

         24                 This is the first in a series of

         25  hearings on the issue of employee workplace health
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          2  and safety. At our next scheduled hearing, this

          3  Committee will receive testimony from labor unions

          4  representing City employees on this critical issue.

          5                 According to the agency's mission

          6  statement, as outlined in the COSH annual report for

          7  FY '98, COSH was established in 1969 by Mayoral

          8  Executive Order. The Order was reissued as Executive

          9  No. 38 of 1997, entitled Relating to the City

         10  Occupational Safety and Health Program.

         11                 COSH is a unit within the Department

         12  of Citywide Administrative Services, Office of the

         13  General Counsel, and is charged with establishing

         14  practices, policies, providing technical assistance,

         15  performing inspections and conducting training in

         16  order to reduce workplace hazards, accidents and

         17  occupational illnesses in City agency work sites.

         18                 In addition, it assists agencies in

         19  developing and sustaining their safety and health

         20  programs and oversees agency compliance with

         21  applicable New York State Labor Department and

         22  federal OSHA laws and regulations.

         23                 This Committee is mindful of the fact

         24  that COSH is presently finalizing data for inclusion

         25  in the FY '99 annual report. Today's hearing will
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          2  not seek and discuss the findings in that report.

          3  The Committee merely seeks to examine the structure

          4  and function of the program and its major issues and

          5  concerns with an eye toward collaborative efforts

          6  either by investigation, or legislation between COSH

          7  and the Council where possible.

          8                 Our first witness today will be Ms.

          9  Sylvia Pryce from COSH.

         10                 MS. PRYCE: Good afternoon, Madam

         11  Chair and members of the Committee. My name is

         12  Sylvia Pryce, and I am the Director of the Citywide

         13  Office of Occupational Safety and Health, COSH, at

         14  the New York City Department of Citywide

         15  Administrative Services.

         16                 Thank you for inviting me to testify

         17  today before the Committee on Civil Service and

         18  Labor about the Citywide Occupational Safety and

         19  Health Committee, about COSH and the Citywide

         20  Occupational Safety and Health Program.

         21                 With me is COSH Acting Deputy

         22  Director James Luke.

         23                 Now, Ms. Cruz, I believe you touched

         24  on quite a lot of what I was going to say in my

         25  opening remarks, but if you don't mind I will just
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          2  go through it in case there is something additional.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 The City of New York has had a City

          5  Employee Workplace Safety and Health Program for

          6  many years. Executive Order No. 38 of 1997 relating

          7  to the Citywide Occupational Safety and Health

          8  Program, which sets out the structure of the

          9  program, is essentially based on Executive Order No.

         10  30 of 1979, which itself relates to New York State's

         11  Public Employee Safety and Health PESH Act of 1980.

         12                 At this time, Executive Order No. 38

         13  is supplemented by a series of five DCAS, that is

         14  our agency, Department of Citywide Administrative

         15  Services, personnel services bulletins, or PSBs,

         16  relating to detailing the safety program, policy and

         17  procedures.

         18                 Also, the provisions of Article 14,

         19  Occupational Safety and Health, of the Citywide

         20  contract between the City of New York and District

         21  Council 37, AFSCME, parallel those to the Executive

         22  Order.

         23                 Additionally in effect are Mayoral

         24  directives on such topics as video display terminals

         25  and ergonomics, also covered under Article XVIII of
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          2  the contract, and the Citywide Asbestos program.

          3                 Let me briefly describe the various

          4  aspects of the City Employee Safety and health

          5  Program to you.

          6                 The Citywide Occupational Safety and

          7  Health Committee is a labor-management oversight

          8  committee, comprised of designated representatives

          9  from the Departments of Law and Health, from the

         10  offices of Labor Relations, Management and Budget

         11  and Operations, the Mayor's Office of Operations,

         12  with two union representatives, and is chaired by my

         13  office, COSH.

         14                 It makes policy recommendations,

         15  reviews agency programs, develops new programs as

         16  needed via ad hoc subcommittees on special topics,

         17  and works to obtain government grants.

         18                 We will be meeting shortly as the

         19  City's Fiscal Year is just ending and COSH presents

         20  its annual report for the last year to the Committee

         21  early in the new fiscal year.

         22                 I believe that the Civil Service and

         23  Labor Committee has received a copy of the FY '98

         24  report, you were quoting from it, and I will be

         25  happy to send you the FY '99 report as soon as it is
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          2  issued.

          3                 The mission of the Citywide Office of

          4  Occupational Safety and Health, COSH, my office, is,

          5  as you went through before, to establish policies,

          6  provide technical assistance, perform inspections,

          7  and conduct training, in order to reduce work place

          8  hazards, accidents and occupational illnesses in

          9  City agency work sites.

         10                 COSH assists agencies in developing

         11  and sustaining their safety and health programs, and

         12  oversees agency compliance with applicable New York

         13  State Labor Departments and federal Occupational

         14  Safety and Health Administration, OSHA, laws and

         15  regulations.

         16                 COSH is a unit within the DCAS office

         17  of the General Counsel, with a staff of ten

         18  professionals, occupational safety and health

         19  specialists, analysts and support personnel.

         20                 The DCAS general counsel is the

         21  Mayoral designee to receive notices of violations

         22  issued to agencies by the New York State Department

         23  of Labor Public Employee Safety and Health Bureau.

         24                 COSH then forwards the notices to the

         25  agency for abatement of the violations.
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          2                 The Citywide hearing conservation and

          3  VDT/ergonomics programs are also run by COSH.

          4                 We deal with a very wide variety of

          5  safety and health issues on behalf of City workers.

          6  Some recent and current initiatives include:

          7  Promoting agency compliance with revised OSHA

          8  standards for fall protection, confined space entry,

          9  personal protective equipment, and respiratory

         10  protection; developing a Citywide policy on Lyme

         11  Disease vaccination; a grant-funded joint labor

         12  management training for agency safety committee

         13  members on injury prevention and a work hazard

         14  surveillance system; and issuing a report on agency

         15  occupational illness and injury incidence rates

         16  based on data from the New York State Department of

         17  Labor and the Bureau of Labor Statistics. We are

         18  also in the process of developing a web site for

         19  COSH and for the safety program.

         20                 At the Mayoral Agency Level, this is

         21  sort of the third part of the program, at the

         22  Mayoral Agency level, every agency has both a

         23  designated executive senior safety and health

         24  liaison, and a safety and health coordinator to

         25  manage its employee safety and health program, as
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          2  outlined in Personnel Services Bulletin 500-7 under

          3  the section of Responsibilities.

          4                 Major agency program components

          5  include, compliance with applicable federal and

          6  state regulations, identification of hazards,

          7  investigation of occupational illness and injuries,

          8  inspection of facilities, and safety and health

          9  training.

         10                 Agency Labor Management Safety

         11  Committees meet regularly to discuss occupational

         12  safety and health programs and procedures in the

         13  agency, with COSH attending as a non-voting member.

         14                 Additionally the safety coordinators

         15  from the major agencies meet with COSH on the

         16  Citywide Occupational Safety and Health Advisory

         17  Council in order to further coordinate the safety

         18  activities of City agencies and promote

         19  effectiveness of the Citywide program.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  discuss these important matters with you. I am happy

         22  to take any questions that you may have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you. We will

         24  start by informing you that we have been joined by

         25  Howard Lasher, Councilman, and Councilman Al

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  Stabile.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 Would the Deputy Director like to

          5  make any comments?

          6                 MS. PRYCE: No, he hasn't prepared any

          7  statement at this time. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

          9                 Ms. Pryce, please enumerate and

         10  describe the programs currently managed by COSH, and

         11  describe the effectiveness of each program and your

         12  efforts to increase the effectiveness of these

         13  programs.

         14                 MS. PRYCE: That is quite a tall

         15  order. I will just review the major ones.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: The major.

         17                 MS. PRYCE: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Fine.

         19                 MS. PRYCE: I would say monitoring the

         20  PESH violations with the agencies is an important

         21  one. That is the State OSHA.

         22                 As I said, when a notice of violation

         23  is issued to one of the Mayoral agencies who are in

         24  our province, my staff, after they have been sent

         25  out to the safety coordinator of the agency, and
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          2  they are also sent out to the senior safety liaison

          3  and the agency head, just to make sure that

          4  everybody gets to see them. Then occupational safety

          5  and health specialists assigned to specific agencies

          6  and so they have a long-term view of what is going

          7  on in that agency. They sit on the agency, that

          8  particular agency safety committee, and so they work

          9  directly with the agency when it gets a violation.

         10                 I really don't want to give examples

         11  at this time, but right from the word go we say, all

         12  right, did you get the violation, we say what are

         13  you going to do about it, if they need technical

         14  health surveys and so on we will go out and assist

         15  them with -- you know, some agencies have more

         16  technical capability than others do. So, it really

         17  depends on each individual agency.

         18                 If there is a problem with compliance

         19  then we bring it to the attention further up in the

         20  agency and also to general counsel, which we are a

         21  part of. We try very much to get the agencies in a

         22  position where they are not being assessed penalties

         23  and in fact I can say that they are, in the last few

         24  years they have been improving on this. If it does

         25  get to a penalty situation, that is I am talking
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          2  about penalties for corrected violations here, then

          3  we have been working with Corporation Counsel and

          4  the State to get a settlement on that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Ms. Pryce, because

          6  you mention penalties, do you have any idea how much

          7  money we have recouped in penalties over the past

          8  year?

          9                 MS. PRYCE: Can you explain what you

         10  mean by recouped, please.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes, you said that

         12  penalties are issued when there is non-compliance;

         13  is that correct?

         14                 MS. PRYCE: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: What kind of

         16  penalties are we talking about? Are they financial

         17  penalties, fines?

         18                 MS. PRYCE: The State assesses fines

         19  against the agencies. If a notice of violation is

         20  not corrected in a timely fashion, yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Well, who is the

         22  money paid to? The state or --

         23                 MS. PRYCE: The State, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

         25                 MS. PRYCE: State Department of Labor.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: How much have we

          3  recouped so far, would you say?  Or paid out. I am

          4  sorry.

          5                 MS. PRYCE: Paid out. Approximately

          6  $700,000.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Approximately

          8  $700,000?

          9                 MS. PRYCE: Seven-hundred thousand.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: That was this year?

         11                 MS. PRYCE: No, that is a total.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: From when?

         13                 MS. PRYCE: I don't have the figures

         14  for this year broken down.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: What is that total

         16  from? From 1982?

         17                 MR. LUKE: I would say the total is

         18  from 1991.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Are there federal

         20  OSHA penalties?

         21                 MS. PRYCE: Well, we come under state

         22  OSHA, under the State Department of Labor, and we

         23  have a penalty system that differs from federal

         24  OSHA. They have a daily fine system, it is kind of

         25  unique.
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          2                 Madam Chairperson?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes.

          4                 MS. PRYCE: There is a special public

          5  employee safety and health program within this

          6  state, so that that is what City employees come

          7  under; whereas was federal OSHA is for private

          8  sector, you know, just regular corporations and so

          9  on, subcontract to the City. But all our employees,

         10  as do state employees, upstate municipalities, they

         11  are under the public employee safety and health act.

         12  But it does utilize all of the OSHA standards, that

         13  is what they actually enforce, the OSHA standards.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Ms. Pryce, could

         15  you tell me, what are the staffing levels in your

         16  office and are you program staff and managed, and

         17  how is your office funded?

         18                 MS. PRYCE: Okay, currently the

         19  headcount --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: OSHA staff, how

         21  many?

         22                 MS. PRYCE: Right. We have a staff of

         23  ten, we did lose some staff, or had some staff go on

         24  part-time over the last year or two, but I am happy

         25  to say we had just hired three new people, and that
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          2  will bring us back up to the headcount to ten.

          3                 I am sorry, what was your next

          4  question? Are we funded?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes.

          6                 MS. PRYCE: We are funded out of

          7  agency funds.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I didn't hear that,

          9  I am sorry.

         10                 MS. PRYCE: We are directly funded

         11  from DCAS, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Do you have a

         13  budget figure for your office?

         14                 MS. PRYCE: I can give you the Other

         15  Than Personal Services budget, which is just under

         16  40,000 --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: You don't have a

         18  combined figure of OTPS and PS?

         19                 MS. PRYCE: I can get you that. I can

         20  certainly get you the PS combined figures. I don't

         21  have them at hand.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

         23                 Let's go back to the staffing levels.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: All right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: You had said there
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          2  were ten staffed persons and you are getting three,

          3  correct? Clear that up for me.

          4                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, right. When we are

          5  fully staffed we have a line, we have ten lines,

          6  right? We did fall below that this last year which

          7  was a cause of concern but we are now, as I said,

          8  you know, we have hired three new people, which two

          9  are on board and that will bring us back to fully

         10  staffed again, about which I am very happy.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: How close are you

         12  to fulfilling the mandate of the program as

         13  established in the Executive Order?

         14                 MS. PRYCE: That is a fairly sweeping

         15  question. As I think you would see from the last

         16  year's annual report, we run a busy program for a

         17  small unit, and hopefully we do fulfill all of the

         18  mandates. We are very active with the agency safety

         19  committees, we do a very active technical assistance

         20  program for all of the agencies, whether training,

         21  surveys, we do special projects, we do policy

         22  analysis, we review all of the changes in the

         23  federal OSHA standards, we run the hearing

         24  conservation program, which I believe is the largest

         25  municipal hearing conservation program in the
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          2  country. Last year we tested almost 4,000 municipal

          3  employees. We run the VDT/ergonomics program. We

          4  perform advisory roles. I think we are pretty busy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: So you feel that

          6  your mission is in fact being fulfilled to the best

          7  of your knowledge?

          8                 MS. PRYCE: I believe so, Madam, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Before I turn it

         10  over, because everybody has questions, I want to ask

         11  you to identify any problem areas or issues in

         12  performing your function, the agency.

         13                 MS. PRYCE: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Not you.

         15                 MS. PRYCE: Oh, no, no, you said that.

         16  I didn't say that.

         17                 As I mentioned before, we did fall

         18  low in staffing, a not uncommon problem in the City

         19  these days, and I think that is the major problem.

         20  It has been a major problem, and I do see that our

         21  effectiveness hopefully will be maximized next year,

         22  next fiscal year with these three additional staff.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I believe in your

         24  statement you did mention the fact that the Citywide

         25  Occupational Safety and Health Committee meets. How
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          2  often?

          3                 MS. PRYCE: We last met ten months

          4  ago.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Every ten months

          6  you meet? How often does the Committee meet?

          7                 MS. PRYCE: Once or twice a year.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Do you see a need

          9  to meet more often or less often? Maybe once a year

         10  or four times a year?

         11                 Is there a need to meet more, or do

         12  you feel that this meeting once or twice a year kind

         13  of allows there to be a flow of information?

         14                 MS. PRYCE: Well, I would say if the

         15  union or any other members requested we meet

         16  quarterly, that would be fine, too. They have not,

         17  you know, in my experience done so. It might be

         18  helpful. It is a fairly mature program, we do work

         19  closely with the union.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: So if the unions

         21  have a need to sit down and discuss, your are

         22  flexible to listening.

         23                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: There is nothing

         25  written in stone that says we only meet every ten
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          2  months, right?

          3                 MS. PRYCE: No, I think you are

          4  thinking of the agency safety committees. They are

          5  mandated to meet quarterly. The Citywide is not.

          6                 But as I say, if DC 37 or CWA

          7  expresses a desire to meet on a quarterly basis, I

          8  would be happy to do so. But as I say, I talk

          9  constantly with DC 37. You know, it is not like we

         10  are not in contact.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay.

         12                 My members are eager to ask some

         13  questions. I am going to call on Larry, because

         14  Larry was next to me and pressed the button.

         15                 Council Member Lawrence Warden,

         16  please.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

         18  much, Madam Chair, and Ms. Pryce, good afternoon to

         19  you.

         20                 MS. PRYCE: Good afternoon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: You indicated

         22  that you had an aggregate of roughly $700,000 in

         23  fines that the City paid to the state for various

         24  violations.

         25                 MS. PRYCE: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Is that

          3  accurate?

          4                 MS. PRYCE: That is right, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay, could

          6  you share with us what were some of the examples of

          7  the areas where we were fined, and what was done to

          8  abate the problem?

          9                 MS. PRYCE: As I said, the state sends

         10  out bills to the agencies, they don't send out a

         11  final bill until everything is corrected. So, in

         12  other words, you know, the first priority with us

         13  and with the state, I must say, is that whatever is

         14  wrong gets corrected.

         15                 As responding to your question about

         16  the kinds of things the agencies could get fined on?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Or did get

         18  fined on.

         19                 MS. PRYCE: Did get fined on. Excuse

         20  me, did get fined on. I would say it ranges from

         21  training for emergency response at the Fire

         22  Department, to not checking up on a fire

         23  extinguisher, to keeping an unclean bathroom, to

         24  asbestos, to lead, you know, OSHA standards, machine

         25  guarding, many, many, many things. Fire safety is of
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          2  course a very serious issue.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: How do you

          4  come into play in terms of the preventative measure

          5  so that when the state comes in to take a look we

          6  are up to snuff. Because $700,000 is a lot of money,

          7  you can buy a lot of books for kids.

          8                 MS. PRYCE: You are absolutely right.

          9  What I can tell you is that over the last few years

         10  the agencies have really, really reduced the numbers

         11  of notices of violation they have gotten.

         12                 If you look at last year's report, it

         13  was like 14 notices of violation issued to 13

         14  agencies, right? This year I did do the preliminary

         15  figures and the agency has only got a total of 22,

         16  which is a 30 percent drop, and even from before I

         17  don't remember the '97 figures, but I know they were

         18  less. The agencies were being much better at

         19  maintaining safety and health conditions, they

         20  really are.

         21                 The total of combined -- let me see,

         22  notices of violation, 22 for last year, 40 for the

         23  year before, it is like a 30 percent drop, as I say.

         24                 So, I think truly we are getting less

         25  than we have had in my experience in the last few
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          2  years, the agencies are doing well.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay. In

          4  another area, COSH is interested with the primary

          5  responsibility of protecting the health and safety

          6  of New York's municipal employees, and yet when we

          7  reviewed the Mayor's Management Report we see no

          8  reference to this office. Where do we find COSH in

          9  the MMR; is it buried in the DCAS? Where is it?

         10                 MS. PRYCE: That is a question that I

         11  think is out of my control.

         12                 Dave, do you want to respond?

         13                 This is Commissioner David Wallach

         14  from DCAS.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALLACH: I

         16  think as --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Identify

         18  yourself for the record.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALLACH: Oh,

         20  sorry. David Wallach, Assistant Commissioner for

         21  Management and Operations, DCAS.

         22                 As Ms. Pryce pointed out, a lot of

         23  the information regarding COSH is released annually

         24  in the COSH annual report, so while we could include

         25  some of the information in the MMR, it would be
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          2  somewhat duplicative because we do provide that

          3  information annually in the COSH report.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

          7  Stabile.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Good

          9  afternoon.

         10                 MS. PRYCE: Good afternoon, sir.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I love your

         12  accent.

         13                 MS. PRYCE: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: British?

         15                 MS. PRYCE: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Born there?

         17                 MS. PRYCE: Yes. American now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: American now,

         19  good.

         20                 I am a little confused, I never even

         21  knew you existed. Not you personally, I never knew

         22  this part of DCAS existed. I always thought that the

         23  agencies themselves, let's say DOT, they have FIAT,

         24  they have a FIAT group that goes out and does there,

         25  safety of their workers, they will check if they
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          2  have their helmets on, the working conditions,

          3  Sanitation has its own group, I know the Police

          4  Department has its group, the Fire Department has a

          5  group now, I have always thought that each one of

          6  those groups managed themselves for the safety of

          7  their workers; isn't that the case, in the majority

          8  of agencies?

          9                 MS. PRYCE: All of the groups you

         10  mentioned we work with.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Do you

         12  oversee them? Do you have control and power over

         13  them? Or is there an equal playing field? Do you do

         14  the training for them? Do you do the preparation for

         15  them to -- in other words, I will give you an

         16  example. You have a fellow named Dave Mandell who is

         17  at DOT, I don't know if he is in charge of FIAT, but

         18  he is the one that we deal with a lot with FIAT.

         19                 Now, FIAT goes out and they monitor

         20  the workers, the guy filling the potholes, the guy

         21  operating the equipment, is he wearing goggles, is

         22  he wearing his helmet, does he have gloves on, is he

         23  wearing the proper shoes. Okay, now that is their

         24  job.

         25                 Now, I am trying to get a handle on
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          2  what your job, not you personally, but what your

          3  agency is doing that they are not doing. Are you

          4  training them to do their job, or are you

          5  overseeing, making sure they are doing their job,

          6  and what is your operating cost on a yearly basis

          7  for your agency to run under DCAS? I am not trying

          8  to pin anybody down for salary, but I am trying to

          9  get an idea of what this is costing us.  And are we

         10  duplicating services, number one?

         11                 The other thing is, when we as an

         12  agent, we as a City, contract an outside contractor,

         13  let's say right now we are redoing the park outside

         14  of City Hall, okay? Which is really a pain in the

         15  neck because you can't park. We are redoing that

         16  park, but that is actually being done, not by Parks

         17  itself, that is being done by a contractor who

         18  bidding through jobs an RFP, he got the job and then

         19  he subed it out to various different contractors.

         20  Does your agency, does your group have any power

         21  over them, seeing that they are working on City

         22  property and they are doing work for the City, does

         23  your group oversee them also?

         24                 MS. PRYCE: Should I go back to the

         25  first question?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Go back to

          3  the first question, go back to any question you

          4  want.

          5                 MS. PRYCE: All right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I am very

          7  easy to get along with.

          8                 MS. PRYCE: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Ask my wife.

         10                 MS. PRYCE: It is a Citywide program,

         11  right? I think you heard me describe it. At the

         12  agencies, yes, each agency has a safety program.

         13  Now, the FIAT program is fairly recent at DOT.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, it is

         15  two years old.

         16                 MS. PRYCE: That's right. But,

         17  however, they have had a safety coordinator, John

         18  Masse, a Senior Liaison, Gwendolyn Lewis, right?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Right.

         20                 MS. PRYCE: So, in other words, they

         21  have FIAT as well, that's great. The more safety

         22  programs, I think particularly a technical agency at

         23  DOT has, would you agree with me, the better?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Of course.

         25                 MS. PRYCE: What is our role, okay. We
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          2  help with training curricular, for example.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: For them.

          4                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, for them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Let's take

          6  them, for instance.

          7                 MS. PRYCE: Blood-born pathogens. It

          8  is specialized topics, like confined space entry, or

          9  particularly for protection.

         10                 James worked very closely with DOT

         11  recently when they upgraded the protection OSHA

         12  standard, you know, where you have to go from the

         13  belt to the harness.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, I know.

         15                 MS. PRYCE: That kind of thing.

         16                 So, in other words, when there is a

         17  sort of an upgrade of any particular safety and

         18  health area, that is where we absolutely jump in.

         19                 Right now we are working with DOT

         20  particularly on the blood-borne pathogen issue,

         21  which is something you would not expect an agency

         22  like that.

         23                 Over the last few years, not so much

         24  now, because we have gotten more self-sufficient,

         25  but a few years ago their lead program for the
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          2  bridges, you know, for the painters and the iron

          3  workers --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, for the

          5  painters.

          6                 MS. PRYCE: Right. We did a great deal

          7  of oversight, many, many meetings with the agency to

          8  make sure that they had all of the aspects of their

          9  Lead Protection Program including of course testing

         10  and some protective equipment, things like that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         12                 MS. PRYCE: So that is good. If you

         13  ask me about a particular agency, I can relate to --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, on that

         15  same note then, let's say the union let's say who is

         16  representing the DOT workers, be it DC 37 or Local

         17  14 or 15-A from the Operating Engineers, do you also

         18  work with them on their concerns? Or do they come to

         19  you with their concerns of their own safety issues

         20  with their employees?

         21                 MS. PRYCE: I would say all of the

         22  above, but particularly at the safety committee

         23  meetings, that is where a lot of these issues get

         24  addressed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.  How
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          2  often do we have these safety committee meetings?

          3                 MS. PRYCE: They are held

          4  approximately monthly or six weeks. And we are very

          5  active. That is one of the areas that I really push.

          6  I think the union does too, to make sure that the

          7  agencies are active with our Agencies Safety

          8  Committee.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: How long has

         10  this agency actually been in effect? Time frame? Has

         11  it been four years, five years, ten years, 20 years?

         12                 MS. PRYCE: Which one?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: The agency

         14  that we are talking about.

         15                 MS. PRYCE: DCAS itself --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Not DCAS,

         17  COSH.

         18                 MS. PRYCE: COSH, over 20 years.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         20                 MS. PRYCE:  Over 20 years. Pretty

         21  much since the PESH Act.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: A pretty well

         23  kept secret. A very well kept secret.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: Let me tell you about --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I am going to
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          2  be honest with you, I worked for Sanitation, I never

          3  heard of it. We had our own safety training.

          4                 MS. PRYCE: Do you know Charlie Allen?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I know

          6  Charlie Allen, sure.

          7                 MS. PRYCE: He was the safety

          8  coordinator.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: From

         10  Sanitation.

         11                 MS. PRYCE: Charlie Allen was a very

         12  good safety coordinator. He has really kept things

         13  going very well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Now, what I

         15  am a little confused about is that who or what,

         16  where does the power lie?

         17                 If we are spending $700,000 in a fine

         18  or penalties, since X amount, 1991 you said I

         19  believe? '91. What is it costing us a year to have

         20  this in effect, and are we duplicating services

         21  within your Department within each agency

         22  department?

         23                 MS. PRYCE: Remember, the Department

         24  of Labor is the one who is issuing the notice of

         25  violation. They are the regulators. We are not the
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          2  regulators. We are the oversight. We are the ones

          3  who try and minimize all of this stuff. What I just

          4  tried to convey to you is that --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Well, you are

          6  minimizing with your own individual agencies.

          7                 In other words, if we know we have a

          8  problem with slippery conditions.

          9                 MS. PRYCE: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I am only

         11  trying to get a feel for this.

         12                 MS. PRYCE: No, your questions are

         13  great.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I will give

         15  you an example. Do you meet with Tony Fasulo from

         16  DOT?

         17                 MS. PRYCE: I know Tony very well,

         18  yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And say,

         20  Tony, what is the major problem we are having with

         21  injuries? What are the reported injuries we are

         22  getting? Is it from lifting? Is it from pulling? Is

         23  it from accidents? Just from people being hurt on

         24  the job? Falling, tripping? Is it job site safety?

         25  Are the jobs of the sites safe?
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          2                 Now, I will give you an example. Just

          3  recently someone who I know very dear to me received

          4  a beautiful letter from FIAT. Now, FIAT is out

          5  there, usually is the bad guy, to the working class,

          6  the working majority, when they hear FIAT, we used

          7  to call them "shoe fly" in Sanitation, they are out

          8  there looking to find something wrong, okay? Because

          9  that is their job. They are out there to find

         10  someone doing something that is not right that they

         11  can correct to prevent him or her from getting

         12  injured.

         13                 Recently someone I know got a letter

         14  from them, beautiful letter saying that he helped an

         15  old lady from across the street because she was

         16  confused on walking on the asphalt or not walking on

         17  the hot asphalt and he got a letter and FIAT did it,

         18  and I thought that was really nice, because it is

         19  nice when you tell people they do bad, but it is

         20  also nice when you tell them they do good.

         21                 My question is, about this COSH

         22  thing, it sounds like a little knish or something

         23  like that, something to eat. My whole thing is, is

         24  this a duplication? Is this the beginning of the

         25  pyramid, which filters all of the standards down to
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          2  agencies? And what is our cost factor on a yearly

          3  basis to run this agency, educating the other

          4  agencies? You have to have a budget, I am sure.

          5                 MS. PRYCE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Could the

          7  gentleman from DCAS give me an answer on that?

          8                 MS. PRYCE: First of all, I wanted to

          9  say something Madam Chair had said. I think with

         10  safety and health, as I am sure you know, is that it

         11  is sort of a big invisible, it is always seen as a

         12  COSH issue until something happens, you know the

         13  triangle shut waste fire (phonetic), the chicken

         14  factory in the south, that kind of thing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

         16                 MS. PRYCE: So I think that is one

         17  answer to your question, is that a lot of what you

         18  see is what doesn't happen. In other words -- which

         19  is a plus.

         20                 MS. PRYCE: That's right. We just have

         21  issued a report, the one that I alluded to, the data

         22  based on a national Bureau of Labor Statistics

         23  Survey, which generally, you know, it shows the

         24  agencies, what direction they are going in.

         25                 Many agencies, as my associate just
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          2  reminded me to tell you, do not have the technical

          3  capability. The ones you mentioned obviously do, I

          4  mean at DOT and at Sanitation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Which ones

          6  don't?

          7                 MS. PRYCE: At Sanitation there used

          8  to be an industrial hygienist you know, that

          9  position was lost.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

         11                 MS. PRYCE: Much to my sorrow.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: They still

         13  give safety classes at Sanitation.

         14                 MS. PRYCE: Right. But Sanitation, we

         15  give a great deal of technical assistance to.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So, my

         17  question, what is the cost factor? What are we

         18  paying for this service that your part of DCAS is

         19  supplying to our agencies? And are we getting the

         20  bang for the buck? Are we getting enough out there?

         21  I mean, I have never heard of it. I mean, I have

         22  worked in City government, my family is in City

         23  government, I have been a City Councilman for six

         24  years. I have never heard of it.

         25                 Now, it is really a well kept secret.
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          2  Now, I am not trying to be funny, but I am being

          3  realistic, and you are right, dollar-for-dollar I

          4  would rather see someone not getting hurt and coming

          5  home and seeing their wife and their daughter and

          6  whatever else, but I am asking what is it costing us

          7  to have this super agency, let's say, which is DCAS,

          8  have this component that is out there to educate

          9  different agencies on the safety of their employees,

         10  on the safety of the work place, on safety of other

         11  things?

         12                 I mean, I could take one agency, I

         13  could give you 20 agencies, I could probably give

         14  you a list of 150 different things that I see wrong

         15  every day. So, what I am trying to say is what are

         16  we doing?

         17                 I mean, I will give you an example. I

         18  am just trying to be very honest. I see Sanitation

         19  trucks that don't have flashing lights at night. I

         20  see Sanitation trucks that don't have body lights on

         21  them. Without a body light, someone is driving down

         22  the street who happens to not have his lights on

         23  could run into this white elephant and get hurt.

         24                 I see DOT guys out there, working,

         25  doing a great job, with not the right boots on. I
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          2  have seen DOT guys out there with sneakers on who

          3  have been violating. I see a lot of things

          4  happening, and it sounds really great what you are

          5  saying, what is it costing us to get this job or the

          6  message out? That is all we would like to know, what

          7  is the agency, this component costing in a dollar

          8  and cents thing? Is it costing $100,000, is it

          9  costing $400,000?

         10                 MS. PRYCE: I think I want to -- first

         11  of all, I will, as I said, get the PS figures, as

         12  well as the OTPS figures for you, no problem. But I

         13  would also like to point out that this is mandated

         14  in the Citywide contract, as well as by Executive

         15  Order, and the fact that we are a, so-to-speak

         16  invisible oversight body, I think is in a sense a

         17  credit to us.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Explain that

         19  to me. Why?

         20                 MS. PRYCE: Well, every instance you

         21  gave of deficiencies you gave at DOT are at the

         22  day-to-day level, right?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Right.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: So maybe the question is

         25  more, you know, that is why I think it is good that
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          2  FIAT is an additional resource available --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: It is a

          4  visible site.

          5                 MS. PRYCE: Right. Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Excuse me. Before

          7  we go any further, could we -- for those of us who

          8  do not know what FIAT is?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: FIAT is a

         10  safety group that goes out and follows the men

         11  working on the street. They will take borough by

         12  borough and to make sure they are doing a proper

         13  job. But also for public safety, if they are wearing

         14  their goggles, if they are wearing the right boots.

         15  They are DOT, FIAT comes out of DOT.

         16                 Now, the reason why I am asking, you

         17  are saying invisible or cloud or whatever way you

         18  want to put it, okay, but in reality I think it is

         19  better to know, and it is better for the worker to

         20  know that there is someone out there looking out for

         21  his or her behalf.

         22                 The same thing with a union. If I run

         23  a union, I want to make sure that the people that

         24  are working for me are also getting not only their

         25  benefits, not only their paycheck every week, not
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          2  only their health benefits, but the safety in the

          3  work place and in the environment. And the reason

          4  why I am so vocal on it is because I am a republican

          5  but I am very pro union, okay? And I believe in

          6  unions and I really truly believe in it, because if

          7  it wasn't for the union there would be the very rich

          8  and the very poor and everyone in between.

          9                 But the reality that bothers me is, I

         10  would like to see your agency out there, I would

         11  love to see a flyer or a pamphlet describing your

         12  agency at different work places, so letting the

         13  worker know that there is someone out there looking

         14  out for his interest. Because in politics everyone

         15  perceives -- I just got a letter from a woman today,

         16  I was crying in the car, and they laughed at me. But

         17  the woman said she is not concerned about Clinton,

         18  what is going on in Washington and she says all I

         19  want you to do is to stay and get re-elected again,

         20  okay? And I can't get re-elected again because we

         21  have term limits, but she was more concerned that I

         22  never moved on to a higher office because she likes

         23  what I do. And the reason why she likes what I do is

         24  because I go there and I meet with the people and I

         25  try to get my message, I try to be visible. I think

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  if the agency is visible to us, as the City Council,

          3  as part of the other branch of government, not the

          4  executive branch, not the judicial, the legislative

          5  branch, was more aware of your agency, maybe jointly

          6  with this Committee, Mr. Smith over here, Frank over

          7  here and Madam Chair, we can actually have the

          8  unions come in and get their opinion and get their

          9  expressions of what is going on in the work places.

         10  Because every union, I mean everyone who is working

         11  in the City, nine out of nine-tenths are union

         12  members, one union or another, and I am just

         13  curious, do we have that input  on a regular basis

         14  where they tell us, look, we have got a problem

         15  here.

         16                 Let me give you an example, when I

         17  worked, I was once a Sanitation man, the City came

         18  out with a ruling, they wanted us all to wear

         19  steel-tipped shoes. They actually gave us a

         20  certificate.  The certificate stated you were

         21  allowed to go to Knapp Shoe Stores, only Knapp, and

         22  pick up a pair of work boots and you would give your

         23  certificate in and they would give you a pair of

         24  work boots, your size, and you would sign, and give

         25  your ID, your badge number and your shield number,
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          2  everything. That went on for many years. Then one

          3  day someone lost their toes and they realized that

          4  steel tipped shoes sometimes are not the answer

          5  because if something falls, that steel also cuts

          6  your toes. So, all of a sudden now Sanitation came

          7  to a problem where they said what do we do.

          8                 MS. PRYCE: All right, well let me

          9  interject at this point. This is a very good example

         10  of what my office does. OSHA recently improved the

         11  personal protective equipment standards. Now you

         12  have to have a hazard evaluation, you have to do

         13  training.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Go ahead, you

         15  are leading in right to where I want to go. Go

         16  ahead.

         17                 MS. PRYCE: I think we are totally on

         18  the same wave length.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: You are

         20  leading to right where I want to get to now.

         21                 MS. PRYCE: So we work actively with

         22  the safety coordinators and the unions on this

         23  issue.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: How does the

         25  working man, or woman, I don't want to get beaten up
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          2  in the newspapers on CNN, how do the working people

          3  get in touch with your agency?

          4                 MS. PRYCE: Let me tell you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And I am a

          6  Sanitation worker, I don't want to go to my boss,

          7  because my boss may think I don't want to work so I

          8  may be a problem to him. Now I want to come to you.

          9  How do I express the violation or the problem?

         10                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, yes, I will tell you.

         11  There are many ways. Our phone is always ringing.

         12  Everybody knows where we are. An employee can go to

         13  their supervisor, who then steers them towards the

         14  agency safety coordinator. If it is a problem that

         15  needs additional technical input or equipment, that

         16  only COSH can provide, then they call on us. And

         17  believe me, they do all the time.

         18                 For example, it is nice in here now,

         19  but when we came in it was a little stuffy. We do a

         20  great deal of indoor air quality investigation. So,

         21  that is one way.

         22                 Another way is a union member can go

         23  to their local.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, what

         25  about anonymous?
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          2                 MS. PRYCE: We accept them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: In other

          4  words, I have a problem in my department, in my

          5  garage. I want to report something. Do we have a

          6  flyer or a leaflet, a little fold thing, maybe three

          7  folds that would say if you have a problem at the

          8  workplace, please call this number, you don't have

          9  to give your name, you don't have to give your

         10  garage, just tell us the problem; did we ever do

         11  anything like that?

         12                 MS. PRYCE: No, but we get them. We

         13  certainly do.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: We do get

         15  them.

         16                 MS. PRYCE: We do. And we get them, we

         17  work for the agency but we do say that the person

         18  does not wish to identify themselves. It doesn't

         19  happen that often though. I will say there is a

         20  degree of trust.

         21                 COSH has, Mr. Stabile?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes. Just

         23  call me Al.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: You know, we have

         25  established a degree of trust I think on both sides
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          2  that report on both the agencies and the unions.

          3                 Quite often the union will call us in

          4  as a sort of third-party even though the agency has

          5  done lead testing, asbestos testing or whatever. It

          6  very frequently happens that we are called in as

          7  the, you know, the deciding factor so-to-speak.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: You answered

          9  my question. I appreciate that. Lead is becoming a

         10  very dangerous word in City Hall.

         11                 MS. PRYCE: I was told not to mention

         12  it, right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: That is sort

         14  of a joke.

         15                 MS. PRYCE: No, I am talking about

         16  occupational lead, obviously not you know. Going

         17  back to one question that the gentleman had asked

         18  earlier.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We have some other

         20  questions.

         21                 MS. PRYCE: I am sure, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: So, I want you to

         23  wrap up your statement to Council Member Stabile's

         24  several points.

         25                 MS. PRYCE: You had said about
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          2  mentioning somebody, Tony Fasulo, at DOT. We meet

          3  regularly, James and myself, with agencies to

          4  discuss their overall safety programs, particularly

          5  when there is a change in personnel.

          6                 For example, the Sanitation, they

          7  have had a complete turnover. James and I met with

          8  them and then we reviewed all aspects of the Safety

          9  and Health Program. We don't do that with the union

         10  at that time because we feel normally that is done

         11  more in the context of the Safety Committee, to

         12  answer an earlier question of yours.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you. I have

         14  several issues I want to get back to.

         15                 Again, I want to state on the record,

         16  that as the Director, you are the Director of the

         17  Citywide Office of Occupational Safety and Health

         18  Department, and you are unable at this time to give

         19  me, to give this Committee a budget for your agency?

         20  You only have OTPS figures; is that correct?

         21                 MS. PRYCE: At hand, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Excuse me?

         23                 MS. PRYCE: To hand, yes, Ma'am. I

         24  will certainly get the other figures to you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: But as Director,
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          2  how can you not know what kind of monies you need to

          3  operate your agency? Is it, as was asked, is it

          4  $500,000 for a director? This is your Deputy, is it

          5  not?

          6                 MS. PRYCE: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: And tell me, the

          8  ten people in your office, what are their positions?

          9  What are their positions within your agency?

         10                 MS. PRYCE:  Director, a managerial

         11  position.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay, director, a

         13  managerial position.

         14                 MS. PRYCE: Deputy Director, also a

         15  managerial position. Occupational safety and health

         16  specialists, which the civil service titles are

         17  either community coordinator or staff analyst. We

         18  have a hearing conservation program, the GT

         19  technicians. We have a trainer. We have a policy

         20  analyst, also a staff analyst position, and then we

         21  have a secretary. And that should add up to ten.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: It doesn't. I

         23  didn't add up to ten.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: There are several

         25  occupational, the technical staff.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay. I didn't add

          3  up to ten. I don't know how, with the staff of one

          4  of each --

          5                 MS. PRYCE: No, it is not one of each.

          6  It is several occupational safety and health

          7  specialists.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: All right. And

          9  these are the people that go out throughout the

         10  entire City to each agency to make sure that our

         11  offices are health and hazard free, right?

         12                 MS. PRYCE: Well, as I say, we are the

         13  top part of the pyramid, as the gentleman had said,

         14  but we work with agency safety and health staff. So,

         15  some of the agencies, the smaller ones particularly,

         16  the safety coordinator wears many hats and doesn't

         17  have any particular expertise in the field and that

         18  is where we come in.

         19                 Take Finance, for example, we work

         20  closely with Finance.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I am just going to

         22  again piggy-back on something that Council Member

         23  Stabile said, which was I don't know how anybody

         24  would know that this agency exists if in no way are

         25  we publicizing or extending literature, sending out
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          2  anything to agencies to say if you have a problem

          3  and you don't want to bring it to your boss, for

          4  whatever fear it may be, please contact us and the

          5  violation will be corrected, I don't understand

          6  this.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Even on that

          8  note, I am just giving an example, and I am not

          9  trying to tell you what to do, but I mean you have

         10  sanitation, DEP, DOT, police, fire, I can think of

         11  50 different agencies out there offhand, out there

         12  24 hours a day, their vehicles are out in the

         13  public; why not have a number put on every vehicle?

         14  Why not have a number where someone can call and say

         15  I have a problem, I work for DOT and if I report it

         16  to my supervisor I am going to have a problem. We

         17  are working under very unsafe conditions. We are

         18  putting asphalt down and it is too hot. We are

         19  picking up garbage in areas, we are having problems

         20  with certain types of garbage. Our recyling. What I

         21  am saying is the words have to get out there. If the

         22  word isn't out there who -- I mean, I am a City

         23  Councilman and I never heard of it before.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: The agency has the safety

         25  program, if that is an issue at that level, that
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          2  should be addressed at that level.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: But then why

          4  have your level?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Al, hold tight.

          6                 Frank, you had some concerns. Please.

          7                 MR. NEELEY: I wanted to ask a

          8  specific question about a building that is on Church

          9  Avenue between Park Place and Warren. I believe we

         10  had City agencies in there one time, at one time,

         11  and now for several years the building has been

         12  closed, we see the work is going in and out, they

         13  are wearing a shield over their mouth so they don't

         14  breathe that they don't breathe the dust, are you

         15  aware of that building?

         16                 MS. PRYCE: Are you talking about 253

         17  Broadway here?

         18                 MR. NEELEY: No, no. We are talking

         19  about Church Avenue, which is a block further down.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALLACH:  Yes,

         21  it goes all the way over to Warren I think too.

         22                 MR. NEELEY: Yes. Are you familiar

         23  with that building?

         24                 MS. PRYCE: No, I am not, I must say.

         25                 MR. NEELEY: We heard a rumor that
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          2  there was an asbestos problem.

          3                 MS. PRYCE: What was the agency that

          4  was in the building?

          5                 MR. NEELY: Oh, gee --

          6                 MS. PRYCE: Are you talking about 110

          7  Church?

          8                 MR. SMITH: There were several

          9  agencies --

         10                 MS. PRYCE: Are you talking about 110

         11  Church?

         12                 MR. SMITH: Yes, 110. The CDA was

         13  there at one point.

         14                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, right. I think the

         15  City has been out of there for years.

         16                 MR. SMITH: Right.

         17                 MS. PRYCE: As far as I know. It was a

         18  leased building, it was not a City-owned building.

         19                 MR. SMITH: Currently they are still

         20  working on that building, correct?

         21                 MS. PRYCE: As far as I know there is

         22  no City agency in that building.

         23                 MR. NEELEY: Do you know why CDA left?

         24                 MS. PRYCE: That was some years ago. I

         25  presume they got a better lease.
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          2                 MR. SMITH: No, no. There was some

          3  type of hazardous condition.

          4                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, I remember that, yes.

          5                 MR. SMITH: But the exact hazardous

          6  condition, do you know what it was?

          7                 MS. PRYCE: I know there were asbestos

          8  issues in that building. I know there were indoor

          9  air quality issues.

         10                 MR. NEELEY: That was the question.

         11                 MS. PRYCE: Yes.

         12                 MR. NEELEY: There were asbestos

         13  issues, yes.

         14                 MS. PRYCE: But it was some years ago.

         15  That is when I was first -- if you want any more

         16  details, please tell me. But I don't think it is a

         17  current safety concern to City employees, I believe.

         18  But I will check.

         19                 MR. NEELEY: The building is empty, so

         20  it is not a problem to any worker now.

         21                 MS. PRYCE: Yes. They had terrible

         22  indoor air, I remember that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I would like at

         24  this time just to let the record show that we have

         25  been joined by Council Member Pedro Espada. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 Do you have any questions on OSHA?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Are we

          5  planning to advertise this? I mean, I don't want to

          6  put you on the spot, but maybe I should ask the

          7  gentleman from DCAS, is there anything in budget to

          8  get this message out to the workers?

          9                 MS. PRYCE: The web site, yes. That is

         10  our main intent, the Internet.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I mean, you

         12  get a guy like me, I am lost on the computer. I

         13  mean, forget about it, I can't even turn the damn

         14  thing on. I mean, forget about it. I have trouble

         15  with copy machines.

         16                 MS. PRYCE: Okay, but on a more

         17  serious note, at every orientation, new employees,

         18  there is a section on caution --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Frank just

         20  said something beautiful, why not put it in the

         21  paycheck? Why not put a little card in the paycheck,

         22  when they get paid every two weeks, or have direct

         23  deposit and do one mailing every six months just

         24  explaining.

         25                 MS. PRYCE: When we have seminars we
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          2  do that. We do it for the hearings.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: What I am

          4  saying, for the average young lady, young man who is

          5  working every day, I don't care if they work in City

          6  Hall or they work somewhere in the field, the

          7  Department of Sanitation or any other agency, they

          8  may have something that you are not seeing or I am

          9  not seeing, maybe their supervisor is not seeing,

         10  but if they knew of a way that they could get it

         11  out, across, without causing them any embarrassment

         12  or any problems in the Department, I think it would

         13  be beneficial to the City as a whole, because now we

         14  would cut down on Lodi awards (phonetic),

         15  disabilities, permanent disabilities, partial

         16  disabilities, and it would be a hell of a lot safer

         17  on the workplace, and I think it would be a feather

         18  in our Mayor's hat, okay? Don't forget, I am a

         19  Republican, I support Rudy Giuliani, and I am

         20  talking honestly, it would be a big feather in his

         21  hat because now we are addressing public safety for

         22  our employees, the lifeblood of our City, the

         23  workers who are out there every day doing the job.

         24                 I am only saying we have to get it

         25  out there.
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          2                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, if I may just finish.

          3  Right, at every orientation there is a section on

          4  the Citywide Health and Safety Program, from COSH,

          5  out to the agencies. Because our agency does all the

          6  new employee orientations.

          7                 We hold periodic seminars on topics,

          8  various topics, from injury prevention to DDT

          9  (phonetic) safety. At every right to know, mandated

         10  right to know training, COSH is a part of that

         11  training, as well as the PESH laws, that whole City

         12  program is included. And in fact, Sanitation, for

         13  example, Sanitation, and what is his name, Charlie

         14  McCarthy? Does a great job and mentions the entire

         15  program for the in-coming people.

         16                 You know, I can say we put the word

         17  out every which way we can, but any suggestions you

         18  have we will certainly take notice of. I am happy to

         19  hear them.

         20                 MR. NEELEY: Do you feel that the

         21  methods that you are using now reach the people at

         22  the bottom of the pyramid? Because I think that is

         23  what the Council member is trying to accomplish.

         24                 MS. PRYCE: Yes, indeed. From the

         25  number of requests we get and from the type of
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          2  requests. There are many avenues. If they do go to

          3  their shop steward, and if the agency cannot deal

          4  with it as a COSH request. You know, it comes from

          5  both labor and management. And of course they can

          6  always go and bring it up to the Safety Committee

          7  themselves and, if necessary, it will be brought up

          8  to us.

          9                 It is a delicate balance. In the

         10  years that I have been at COSH, which is nine now, I

         11  have seen some agencies go from practical total

         12  ineptitude to perfectly effective and vice-versa. So

         13  I think what we provide is stability of resources

         14  that the agencies can reach out to.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Ms. Pryce, I am

         16  going to adjourn this Civil Service and Labor

         17  Committee. I thank you.

         18                 MS. PRYCE: Thank you very much.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)
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